
Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel to 
be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 4 March 2020

TIME: 9.45 am – Member Briefing
10.00 am – Meeting

VENUE: Committee Room 2, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

10.00AM 

1  Welcome and Introductions. 

2  Apologies for absence. 

3  Declarations of Interest. 

4  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 5 February 2020. 

(Pages 1 - 10)

5  Matters arising. 

10.10AM 

6  Proposed GP practice mergers in Eccles & Irlam. (Harry Golby) 

10.40AM 

7  COVID-19 Update. 

11.00AM 

8  Work Programme. (Pages 11 - 16)

11.15AM 

9  Any other business. 

Public Document Pack



10  Date and time of next meeting - Wednesday 1 April 2020 at 
10.00am 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3011
Mike McHugh, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: mike.mchugh@salford.gov.uk



1 | P a g e

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY PANEL

5 February 2020

Meeting commenced: 10.00 a.m.
Meeting ended: 12.17 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Margaret Morris - in the Chair

Councillors Damian Bailey, Joshua Brooks, Jim Dawson, Stephen Hesling, Jim King, 
Sophia Linden, John Warmisham and Arnold Saunders

CO-OPTED MEMBERS:

J Ahmed - Healthwatch Salford
Bruce Poole - Salford CVS

OFFICERS:

Judd Skelton  - Assistant Director Joint Commissioning
Alison Burnett - Senior Manager Joint Commissioning
Clare Mayo - Integrated Commissioning (Adult Mental Health)
Anna Ganotis - Head of Service Improvement (Salford CCG)
Beverley Wasp - Public Health Strategic Manager Health Protection
Mike McHugh - Senior Democratic Services Officer 

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

Councillor Margaret Morris welcomed those present to the meeting of the Health and 
Social Care Scrutiny Panel.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Gina Reynolds, Jane 
Hamilton, Sammie Bellamy and Barbara Bentham.
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no formal declarations of interest. 

4. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 6 November 2019 were approved as a correct 
record.

5. MATTERS ARISING

There were no matters arising.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

5 February 2020

2 | P a g e

6. SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT FOR MENTAL HEALTH AND LEARNING 
DISABILITY

Judd Skelton introduced a report providing an overview of the background to current 
performance of, and future plans to address, employment for people accessing 
secondary care mental health services and people with Learning Disabilities.

He provided details of the performance relating to the current service provision and 
confirmed that the current performance showed:

- Salford was currently fourth in Greater Manchester against the Adult Social 
Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) measure 1F and was in line with
North West performance. However, the locally set target of 10% was not
currently being achieved at the mid-year point.

- Salford was currently Salford is below average for Greater Manchester, but 
ahead of the North West average against ASCOF measure 1E.

There were a number of planned approaches to support people with secondary care
mental health needs and Learning Disabilities into employment, which included:

- Greater Manchester commissioning

- Revision of mental health employment support to align with the Living Well
model

- Local commissioning of Learning Disabilities (LD) provision

Kerry Thornley, Alison Burnett and Clare Mayo gave a presentation which included 
details, as follows - 

- Performance Overview 

• Salford is currently 4th in GM against ASCOF measure 1F  (Mental 
Health) and is in line with North West performance. However, the 
locally set target of 10% is not currently being achieved at the mid year 
point. 

• Salford is currently below average for GM but ahead of  the North West 
average against ASCOF measure 1E (Learning Disability)

- GM Support

• GM Working Well Specialist Employment Service
– GMCA + GM HSCP commission
– ‘Top up’ to specialist existing local provision 
– Includes supported employment for people with Learning 

Difficulties and Severe and Enduring Mental Illness (SMI). 

Page 2



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

5 February 2020

3 | P a g e

– Limited provision – likely to be small numbers
• Supported employment for LD and / or Autism is 39 

people in Salford across 3 years (with 13 people gaining 
employment)

• Individual Placement and Support (IPS) working with 88 
people in Salford across 3 years (with 22 people gaining 
employment. Likely to focus on the Early Intervention in 
Psychosis Cohort. 

– Contract due to commence in January 2020 but delivery will start 
1 April 2020. 

- Local Support (General) 

• Salford Health Works – 18-65 years within families with complex 
needs or who have been supported through Council’s Early Help 
services 

• Salford Connexions – young people 16-18 and up to 25 years if 
special educational needs evident. 

• Supported Internships – Young people aged 16-24 with 
Education, Health and Care plans. 

• Salford Information Advice and Guidance (IAG) Network – 
linking 120+ organisations in Salford 

• Employer Engagement – building positive relationships with 
employers 

- Local Support (Mental Health Specific) 

• IPS 

– Located in the early intervention in psychosis team. 59 
people supported in 2018/19 and 38 progressed on to 
employment. 

– Community Engagement and Recovery Team (CERT) – 
workers co-located within CMHTs to support people with 
employment, vocational, education and volunteering 
opportunities. 

• Living Well 

– Emerging Living Well model provides an opportunity to re-
think our employment offer. Start Forward service was 
decommissioned and a revised offer has been developed 
via co-production as part of the Multi Disciplinary Team 
(MDT). This is part of a holistic package of support. The 
approach is currently being prototyped, looking to be 
piloted in April 2020. A full evaluation of the model will 
then inform roll out across Salford. 

Page 3



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

5 February 2020

4 | P a g e

• Wider VCSE Provision 

– Start – Arts based mental health support 
– Horticulture support 

- Local Support (Learning Disability)

• Skills and Work Commissioning Team Post 

– Dedicated officer to work with residents, employers and partners 
to increase the number of people with LD in paid work. 

– Focus on increasing the number of opportunities for priority 
residents

– Maximising outcomes from the GM specialist employment 
service 

• Princes Park Garden Centre 

– Day opportunities with ability to train people in horticulture with 
the aim of moving on to voluntary or paid work.  

Members raised a number of questions in respect of a number of issues, including -

- a request for a report on work being undertaken to focus on Transition

- a request for an update on the work being undertaken by Connexions 

- a request for a report focussing on Universal Credit

- a request for details of any organisations in Salford who have attained the 
Gold Standard for disability

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the update report be noted.

(2) THAT a request be made for a report focussing on Transition to be 
presented at the meeting of this Panel in April 2020.

(3) THAT a request be made for an update report on the work being 
undertaken by Connexions to be presented at the meeting of this Panel in July 2020.

(4) THAT a request be made for a report focussing on Universal Credit 
to be presented at a future meeting of this Panel.

(5) THAT members of the Panel be provided with details of 
organisations in Salford who have attained the Gold Standard for disability.

Page 4



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

5 February 2020

5 | P a g e

7. MENTAL HEALTH ALL AGE COMMISSIONING STRATEGY

- Overview 

• All Age Mental Health Strategy in place
• Overseen via All Age Mental Health Strategy Group – commissioners 

and providers (including VCSE representation)
• All Mental Health 5 Year Forward View (MH5YV) funding now 

committed in line with the priorities identified as a system.

- MH5YFV

• IAPT
- Prevalence 

• Already exceeding the current access target and close to achieving the 
25% target for 2021. 
- Waiting Time Targets 

• Challenges in Step 3 (GMMH service) are now being resolved due to 
CCG investment for phase 2 – improving trajectory 

• Workforce challenges in step 2 
• Capacity / Flow review suggests the right level of commissioned 

capacity. 
- Recovery 

• Double counting issue
- Long Term Conditions (LTCs) 

• Work ongoing with health psychology. LTCs clinics re diabetes, COPD 
and developing around other areas. Links made with emerging locality 
teams. 
- Perinatal  

• 2 funded perinatal workers and 0.25 clinical lead in the step 3 service

• EIP 
- Achieving all targets. Current indications suggest that we are a 

level 3 service against the annual national audit. 
- Due to implement assessment function in January 2020 – 18 

month pilot. 
- Incentive scheme providing additional lived experience 

outcomes measures 

• Crisis 
- Significant investment in liaison mental health service 
- Challenges in recruitment – GM recruitment approach is being 

undertaken to support. 
- 24/7 mental health intermediate care beds supported by Home 

Based Treatment implemented from Spring 2020 as a test of 
change for 18 months. 

Page 5



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

5 February 2020

6 | P a g e

- Innovation funding opportunity re alternative to A+E Crisis 
provision. 

• Acute Inpatient Out of Area Placements (OAPs)

- November showed 3 reportable and 3 non reportable OAPs

• Suicide Prevention 

- Lived experience project 
- Work with local coroners 
- GP risk factors project 
- Peer review of suicide prevention action plan 

- NHS Long Term Plan Ambitions

- NHS Long Term Plan: Models of Community Care - Eating Disorder

• Eating Disorders 
- Current commissioned capacity does not meet demand 
- Review identified a need for increased capacity, medical 

monitoring, Family Therapy and Early Intervention Pathway. 

- Business case due February to Service and Finance Group 
- Joint pathway group (CYP / Adult) to further support transition.

- NHS Long Term Plan: Models of Community Care - Living Well

• Living Well 
- Focus on people falling between primary and secondary care. 
- Currently in the prototyping phase – working with 12 people in 

Broughton to test out elements of the model (My Story / MDT / 
Listening Lounge / Wider Network)

- Pilot phase due April 2020. 
- Redesigning community offer to mental health 
- Development of a ‘through the night listening lounge’ to meet the 

LTP requirement for ‘open access’ crisis support

- VCSE Grants for Mental Health

• VCSE Grants via CVS 
- Use of GM transformation money 
- Aligned to Living Well programme 
- Larger Grants: 

- Start - Recovery Workers 
- Mind and Mental Health Forum - Peer Support 

- Smaller Grants (all working with diverse communities)
- Warm Hut
- Umoja
- Yemini Community Association

Page 6



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

5 February 2020

7 | P a g e

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the presentation be noted.

(2) THAT Councillor Morris liaise with the City Mayor in respect of 
staffing challenges relating to mental health services.

8. PRIMARY CARE UPDATE

Anna Ganotis submitted an update report which was requested at the August 2019 
meeting in relation to access to appointments in general practice for people who are 
registered with a Salford GP.

She provided update reports on a number of issues, including - 

- Non-Attendance (DNAs) at SWEAP Appointments

Members had previously highlighted concerns regarding the high number of 
non-attendance (DNAs) at SWEAP appointments. The DNA rate remains at 
c.17%. Salford Primary Care Together have developed and implemented an 
improvement plan, however, it does not appear to have reduced DNAs. A 
major issue is the inability to send text reminders to patients due to the way 
that the IT system works. The issue was raised with the system supplier, but 
did not receive a positive response.

Therefore, concerns have been escalated to the head of digital technology at 
the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership, who has agreed 
to raise the issues on behalf of all Greater Manchester CCGs.

- Apprentices

Members had queried if GP practices could offer apprenticeships. The CCG 
has now joined the Salford Skills for Business Fund (SSFBF). This means that 
the CCG is signed up to gift up to 25% of its levy funding to other local 
businesses in Salford. As part of this, the CCG has publicised opportunities for 
care homes and GP practices to apply to the fund to support apprenticeships. 
Along with partners, the CCG has worked with Greater Manchester colleagues 
to develop a trainee nurse associate apprenticeship that will be specific to 
primary care. 5 students will potentially be supported in the first pilot that 
commences in March 2020. The SSFBF is committed to funding the 
apprenticeship fees and the CCG is committed to supporting any funding 
shortfall with regard to providing backfill for staff to take part in the pilot.

There is also a task and finish group that has been established as part of the 
Locality Workforce Transformation Group to maximise the use of 
apprenticeships across the broader Salford system (including primary care). 
This will ensure that we take full advantage of the levy that organisations pay.

Page 7



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

5 February 2020

8 | P a g e

- Primary Care Workforce Strategy

The strategy was refreshed in May 2019 and the priorities from the year 1 
delivery plan are being progressed. This includes:

- Working with the Manchester Medical School to increase the number of 
training practices supporting students

- Learning from the local Quality Improvement and Research Fellows 
programme and scaling up our approach to embedding portfolio 
fellowship roles for GPs and other professionals

- Developing the role of the Nurse Associate in general practice, utilising 
apprenticeships and  completing the pilot of the General Practice Nurse 
Certificate Course in partnership with the University of Salford

- Completing the roll out and evaluation of workflow optimisation
- Working with our primary care networks to develop our approach to 

establishing ‘first contact practitioners’ (for physiotherapy) across the 
city

- Progressing our workforce data project SWorDMAP (Salford Workforce 
Data Mapping Project) with the Applied Research Collaboration (ARC)

- Continuing to scope models for mental health workers and primary care 
pharmacy technicians alongside other system wide initiatives (e.g. 
Living Well)

In addition to the above priorities, the Greater Manchester Health and Social 
Care Partnership have identified funding to support localities to develop their 
local retention plans and also for establishing group consultations in primary 
care. Some initial focus groups have been carried out and a task and finish 
group is currently forming to develop a local plan for GP and practice nurse 
retention. Part of the funding has been utilised to create some clinical
capacity to lead this work, with some designated project support.

- Digital First Primary Care

Pilots of different online consultation solutions are in progress at 9 Salford 
practices. This will support the CCG to understand local requirements and to 
identify how best to use and implement online consultations for the benefit of 
patients and practices. The CCG is now embarking on a procurement process 
to purchase a city-wide solution for providing online consultations for patients. 
An engagement event is scheduled to take place on 11 February and the 
CCG is expected to award to the successful bidder the week commencing
30 March 2020. The CCG is seeking patient representation on the 
assessment panel to ensure that patient needs are taken into account.

The CCG has now resourced dedicated ‘digital facilitators’ to support Salford 
GP practices to support the move to digital delivery of services.

Page 8



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

5 February 2020

9 | P a g e

The Electronic Prescription Service (EPS) sends electronic prescriptions from 
GP surgeries to pharmacies. This makes the prescribing and dispensing 
process more efficient and convenient for patients and staff. Eventually EPS 
will remove the need for most paper prescriptions. Four Salford practices are 
not currently meeting the local target of 56% of prescriptions using EPS. One 
of these practices is due to close, so has not been pursued. 25 practices are 
achieving over 85%. The digital facilitator team are working with practices to
improve utilisation of EPS. .

Electronic repeat dispensing (eRD) is an integral part of EPS. eRD allows the
prescriber to authorise and issue a batch of repeatable prescriptions for up to 
12 months with just one digital signature. This will save time for GP practices 
and mean that patients have no need to contact their surgery to reorder at 
regular intervals, unless their condition changes. 7 Salford practices have not 
yet started using electronic repeat dispensing, 15 practices are achieving the 
national target of 25% or more repeat prescriptions using eRD. Salford is 
currently the best performing CCG for eRD in Greater Manchester.

On the 21 November 2019, the CCG facilitated a ‘digital takeover’ of the CCG 
/ Salford City Council Citizen Engagement Panel. The event showcased the 
use of digital healthcare in Salford and Greater Manchester. There was a 
marketplace of digital services and suppliers for citizens to meet, along with a 
number of workshops and presentations. Students from the local community 
college were invited along to join the citizen panel in the morning and in the 
afternoon they took part in a mini ‘hackathon’, led by the University of Salford.

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the update be noted.

(2) THAT further updates on this matter be presented at future 
meetings of this Panel.

9. WORK PROGRAMME

RESOLVED: THAT the work programme be amended to include the items 
considered in items 7 and 8, above.

10. PUBLIC HEALTH UPDATE - CORONA VIRUS

Beverley Wasp provided an update in respect of the Corona Virus.

She confirmed that UK agencies were continuing to work closely with the World 
Health Organisation and the international community as the outbreak in China 
developed to ensure that preparations were being made for all eventualities.

It was noted that Salford was working closely with Greater Manchester Authorities, 
Public Health England and the NHS to actively monitor the situation locally following 
national guidance.

Page 9



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

5 February 2020

10 | P a g e

General advice on how to avoid catching or spreading germs was given - 

Do cover your mouth and nose with a tissue or your sleeve (not your hands) when 
you cough or sneeze

- put used tissues in the bin immediately
- wash your hands with soap and water often – use hand sanitiser gel if soap 

and water are not available
- try to avoid close contact with people who are unwell

Don't

- do not touch your eyes, nose or mouth if your hands are not clean

Information for the public, which was being updated on a daily basis, was available 
on the web at https://www.gov.uk/guidance/wuhan-novel-coronavirus-information-for-
the-public

RESOLVED: THAT the update be noted.

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

There were no items of any other business.

12. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

RESOLVED: THAT the next meeting of this Committee be held on Wednesday 4 
March 2020 at 10.00 a.m.

Page 10

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/wuhan-novel-coronavirus-information-for-the-public
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/wuhan-novel-coronavirus-information-for-the-public


1 | P a g e

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel
Work Programme and Recommendation Tracker

2019 / 2020
Updated February 2020

Meeting date Item for consideration Lead Officer to 
present papers

Type of scrutiny 

7 August 2019  Primary Care Access – 
standards and equality

Karen Proctor, CCG 
Director of 
Commissioning

Overview report on the Salford Standard and local 
variance.

4 September 2019  Salford Locality Plan 
refresh

 Dentistry provision

 All Age Carers Strategy

Peter Brambleby
Interim Director of 
Public Health

Peter Brambleby, 
Interim Director of 
Public Health

Paul Walsh / Ann 
Brooking

Shaping the policy development and pre-decision 
review of emerging refresh.

Existing requested agenda item.

Scrutiny of Strategy prior to formal approval.

2 October 2019  Public engagement and 
consultation

Claire Connor, CCG Retrospective scrutiny of annual reports of public 
engagement by Salford CCG and Salford Healthwatch.

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 8



2 | P a g e

Meeting date Item for consideration Lead Officer to 
present papers

Type of scrutiny 

6 November 2019  Salford Locality Plan 
refresh

 GM Improving 
Specialised Care 
Programme

 SRFT Elective 
Orthopaedic Briefing

Peter Brambleby
Interim Director of 
Public Health

Karen Proctor, CCG 
Director of 
Commissioning

Harry Golby, CCG

Review of progress of refresh.

Update on current proposals and scrutiny of likely 
impact on SRFT services to local people.

4 December 2019  Salford Domiciliary care 
– standards and quality

 Adult social care 
performance framework

Mark Albiston SRFT / 
Paul Walsh SCC

Mark Albiston SRFT/ 
Judd Skelton / Paul 
Walsh SCC / CCG

Overview of care home standards.

Scrutiny of the improvement agenda.

8 January 2020 CANCELLED
5 February 2020  Primary Care Access – 

standards and equality

 Supported Employment 
for vulnerable adults

 Mental Health All Age 
Commissioning Strategy

Karen Proctor, CCG 
Director of 
Commissioning

Alison Burnett, Skills 
and Work SCC / Clare 
Mayo and Kerry 
Thornley CCG / SCC

Judd Skelton
AD Integrated 
Commissioning Adults

6-month Update (from August 2019)

Update on progress against action plan.

Scrutiny of first year of operation

P
age 12



3 | P a g e

Meeting date Item for consideration Lead Officer to 
present papers

Type of scrutiny 

4 March 2020  Proposed GP practice 
mergers in Eccles & 
Irlam

 COVID-19 Update

Harry Golby Scrutiny Panel to identify emerging issues in Forward 
Look.

1 April 2020  Adult social care 
performance framework

Mark Albiston SRFT / 
Judd Skelton, Paul 
Walsh SCC, CCG

Scrutiny of the improvement agenda. 

May 2020 NO MEETING
3 June 2020  Salford Locality Plan Muna Abdel Aziz Mid-year review of progress against the plan.

1 July 2020  Scrutiny Panel to identify emerging issues in Forward 
Look.

August 2020 NO MEETING
2 September 2020 
7 October 2020 
4 November 2020 
2 December 2020 

P
age 13



4 | P a g e

Abeyance List
The following issues have yet to be prioritised and TOR determined.

Poverty and its impact on health 

Policy development task and finish scrutiny with potential to influence refresh of Salford 
Anti-Poverty Strategy and Locality Plan. 

Peter Brambleby
Interim Director of Public Health

Out of area placements for younger adults  

Overview on commissioning arrangements and issues

Judd Skelton, Clare Mayo, Kerry 
Thornley, Integrated Commissioning 
SCC / CCG

P
age 14



5 | P a g e

Portfolio of the Panel: Membership – 12 Members:

1. Health, Public Health and Social Care Integration and 
performance thereafter
2.  Commissioning Hub
3.  Major Health reconfiguration
4. Overview of Health and Wellbeing Board in promoting 
integration
5.  Supporting People
6. Services for independent living – care on call, sheltered 
housing, supported tenancies
7. Adult Safeguarding
8. Integrated Teams
9. Provider Services
10. Personalisation and care management
11. Asylum Seekers and Refugees
12. Welfare rights and debt advice
13. To review and scrutinise any matter relating to the planning 
provision and operation of the health service in the Salford area.
14. To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this 
functional area

Councillors

 Saunders
 1 Conservative Vacancy
 Bailey
 Bellamy (VC)
 Bentham 
 Brooks
 Dawson
 Hesling
 King
 Linden
 Morris (C)
 Warmisham

J Ahmed - Co-opted Member (Healthwatch Salford)
David Backhouse - Co-opted Member (Healthwatch Salford)
Bruce Poole - Co-opted Member (Salford CVS)

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2020.
	8 Work Programme.

